
 

 
 
Notice of meeting of  

 
East Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 
To: Councillors Moore (Chair), Cregan (Vice-Chair), Douglas, 

Firth, Funnell, Hyman, King, Orrell, Taylor and Wiseman 
 

Date: Thursday, 21 August 2008 
 

Time: 2.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 
Site Visits for this meeting will commence at 10.00am on Wednesday 

20 August 2008 at Union Terrace Car Park 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this 
agenda. 
 

2. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Sub-Committee’s remit can do so. Anyone 
who wishes to register or requires further information is 
requested to contact the Democracy Officer on the contact 
details listed at the foot of this agenda. The deadline for 
registering is Wednesday 20 August at 5pm. 
 
 

3. Plans List    
 To determine the following planning applications related to the 

East Area. 
 



 

 
a) 7 Fairfields Drive, Skelton,York, YO30 1YP. 

(08/01640/FUL)   
(Pages 5 - 9) 

 Two storey extension to side, single storey extension to rear, 
pitched roof canopy to front, after demolition of existing garage. 
[Skelton, Rawcliffe and Clifton Without Ward] [Site Visit] 

b) Archbishop Holgates School, Hull Road, 
York, YO10 5ZA. (08/01266/FULM)   

(Pages 10 - 22) 

 Erection of 1 no two storey learning centre with associated 
access, landscaping, parking and cycle storage, following 
demolition of existing cycle storage (resubmission). [Hull Road 
Ward] [Site Visit] 

4. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  

Local Government Act 1972 
 

Democracy Officer: 
 
Name: Laura Bootland 

• Telephone – (01904) 552062 

• E-mail – laura.bootland@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting  

• Registering to speak 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
Contact details set out above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
EAST AREA PLANNING 

SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
 

SITE VISITS 
 
 
 

WEDNESDAY 20 August 2008 
 
 
 
TIME   SITE       

 
 

10:00 am   Meet Minibus at Union Terrace Car Park.   
 

10:10 am    7 Fairfields Drive, Skelton  (3a) 
10:45am Archbishop Holgates School (3b) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 3



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Advisory Panel (EMAP)) agenda. 
The Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date 
and will set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 

• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 
necessary; and 

• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 
 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 4



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01640/FUL  Item No: 3a 
Page 1 of 4 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: East Area Ward: Skelton, Rawcliffe, Clifton 

Without 
Date: 21 August 2008 Parish: Skelton Parish Council 
 
 
 
Reference: 08/01640/FUL 
Application at: 7 Fairfields Drive Skelton York YO30 1YP  
For: Two storey extension to side, single storey extension to rear, 

pitched roof canopy to front, after demolition of existing garage 
By: Mr Steve Ward 
Application Type: Full Application 
Target Date: 28 August 2008 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1  This application seeks planning permission for extensions to 7 Fairfields Drive in 
Skelton.  The dwelling is not within the conservation area.  7 Fairfields Drive is part 
of a relatively low density 1970's residential development which consists 
predominantly of detached houses.  7 Fairfields Drive sits on a corner plot with 
Grange Close running along its western boundary. 
 
1.2  The proposed development consists of a two-storey side extension, a single 
storey rear extension, and a pitched roof front canopy.  The existing flat roof garage 
to the side would be demolished. 
 
1.3  An application (08/00745/FUL) was submitted for a dwelling to be erected within 
the rear garden of 7 Fairfields Drive with access off Grange Close.  This was refused 
and is currently the subject of an appeal.  However, this is not considered to be a 
material consideration in the determination of this application. 
 
1.4  This application is being heard before committee at the request of Cllr. Watt.  A 
site visit is recommended in order to fully understand the potential impact on the 
street scene and the living conditions of neighbours. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
City Boundary York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams East Area (2) 0005 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3aPage 5



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01640/FUL  Item No:3a  
Page 2 of 4 

2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYH7 
Residential extensions 
 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
EXTERNAL 
 
3.1  Skelton Parish Council - Object on the follwoing grounds: 
- the extensions by virtue of their design, size and scale would dominate the site and 
would result in an overbearing and oppressive development when viewed from 9 
Fairfields Drive; 
- an appeal  regarding the erection of a new dwelling within the rear garden has yet 
to be determined, fully considering the implications of this application without 
knowing whether a dwelling is to be built in the back garden is difficult; 
- it appears unlikely that the development could be achieved without impacting upon 
the trees on the site. 
 
3.2  Neighbours - No correspondence received. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1  The key issues to consider in determining this application are considered to be 
the visual impact on the street scene and the living conditions of neighbours. 
 
STREET SCENE 
4.2  The front of the property is the most visually important elevation within the street 
scene, the rear of the property is also visible from Grange Close, albeit above a 1.5 - 
2 m close boarded boundary fence.  The proposed two-storey side extension is 
considered to conform with the dwelling extension design guide.  The extension is 
set back approximately 0.6 m from the main front elevation of the house.  The ridge 
and eaves heights have also been reduced in relation to the main house.  The 
extension would be 3.5 m in width whilst the main house is currently 8 m in width.  
Therefore the proposed extension is considered to be subservient to the main house.  
The proportions and detailing of the proposed extension appear considered in terms 
of the location and scale of the window and garage door openings. 
 
4.3  The proposed canopy to the ground floor front elevation is not a common feature 
in the area.  However, it is small in scale and subject to a condition ensuring that the 
building materials match those on the main house it is not considered that it would 
harm the appearance of the dwelling or the character of the area.  There are a 
variety of house styles in the area and it is considered that the proposed addition 
would not be significantly detrimental to the street scene.  
 

Page 6



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01640/FUL  Item No:3a  
Page 3 of 4 

4.4  At present the rear of the property contains a full width conservatory.  Part of the 
proposed development is to reduce the size of the conservatory and to replace this 
with an extension to the kitchen.  It is considered that this would have very little 
impact on the appearance of the dwelling. 
 
4.5  The two-storey side extension protrudes 2.4 m from the main rear elevation of 
the house.  However, the proposed eaves height is set significantly below that of the 
main house creating an appearance similar to that of a dormer bungalow.  This is an 
unusual design detail on this dwelling.  Whilst this would be visible from some areas 
of Grange Close it is not considered that it would be visually prominent given the 
separation distance between the proposed extension and Grange Close.  It is 
considered that the impact on the street scene would be limited and not significantly 
harmful. 
 
LIVING CONDITIONS OF NEIGHBOURS 
4.6  The proposed two-storey side extension would be located very close to the 
property curtilage boundary with 9 Fairfields Drive.  9 Fairfields Drive has an 
attached flat roof garage on the boundary which would separate the proposed 
extension from the main house.  9 Fairfields Drive only has one window in its side 
elevation facing the proposed development, this is at first storey level and is 
secondary in nature.  The primary purpose of this window would be to provide 
natural light rather than an outlook.  There are no windows within the side elevation 
of the proposed extension.  Therefore the impact on the first floor window of number 
9 is considered to be acceptable.   
 
4.7  The proposed two-storey side extension protrudes beyond the main rear 
elevation of 7 Fairfields Drive.  However, 9 Fairfields Drive is set back a greater 
distance from the road than number 7.  The proposed two-storey rear extension 
would therefore not extend beyond the main rear elevation of 9 Fairfields Drive.  
Therefore, it is not considered that the extension would appear dominant or 
overbearing when viewed from this property.  It is also not considered that there 
would be significant implications in terms of the blocking out of sunlight, the 
submitted sunlight assessment also concludes that this is the case. 
 
4.8  The nearest dwelling to the rear is a bungalow at 2 Grange Close.  This is over 
20 m away from the proposed extension and therefore the impact on the living 
conditions of this property would be minimal. 
 
4.9  The proposed extension would create a five-bedroom dwelling.  Associated with 
the extension is an integral garage which can be used for car and cycle parking.  
There is also the capacity to park vehicles off the road at the front of the house. 
There are no highway objections to this application. 
 
4.10  Skelton Parish Council raised concerns about the loss of trees on this site.  No 
trees on the application site are protected and they could therefore be removed at 
any point without permission from the LPA.  It is not considered that any trees or 
shrubs which may need to be removed to make way for the extensions significantly 
contribute to the character and appearance of the area. 
 
 

Page 7



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01640/FUL  Item No:3a  
Page 4 of 4 

 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1  It is considered that the proposed development would not harm the character 
and appearance of the street scene or the living conditions of neighbours.  The 
application is therefore recommended for approval subject to conditions. 
 
COMMITTEE TO VISIT  
 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
 
1.  TIME2  Development start within three years  
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 

with the following plans:- 
 
Drawing Number 08:49:01 Rev A received by The CoYC on 20/06/08. 
 
Or any plans or details subsequently agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority as amendment to the approved plans. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
3. VISQ1  matching materials  
 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the conditions 
listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged importance, 
with particular reference to the impact on the street scene and the living conditions of 
neighbours.  As such the proposal complies with Policies GP1 and H7 of the City of 
York Draft Local Plan. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Michael Jones Development Control Officer 
Tel No: 01904 551325 
 

Page 8



Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission

of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not Set

7 Fairfields Drive

08/01640/FUL

Not Set

Not Set

11 August 2008

Application Site

1:1250

Page 9



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01266/FULM  Item No:3b  
Page 1 of 12 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: East Area Ward: Hull Road 
Date: 21 August 2008 Parish: Hull Road Planning Panel 
 
 
 
Reference: 08/01266/FULM 
Application at: Archbishop Holgates School Hull Road York YO10 5ZA  
For: Erection of 1 no two storey learning centre with associated 

access, landscaping, parking and cycle storage following 
demolition of existing cycle storage (resubmission) 

By: Archbishop Holgates School 
Application Type: Major Full Application (13 weeks) 
Target Date: 29 August 2008 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 This is a full planning application for the erection of an extension to Archbishop 
Holgate's school to provide accommodation for post 16 education. 
 
1.2 In December 2006 Archbishop Holgate's school was advised that it had been 
redesignated as a high performing specialist science college with a second 
vocational specialist status thus creating an opportunity to apply for the provision of 
post 16 education. 
 
1.3 A feasibility study undertaken at Archbishop Holgate's school concluded that 
through the development of a new purpose built applied learning centre Archbishop 
Holgate's school could promote partnership working to the delivery of the 16 - 19 
agenda in a way that meets the needs of learners and offers focused educational 
provision addressing demand from some of the key economic drivers within the city. 
 
1.4 Archbishop Holgate's school is located on Hull Road approximately 1.5 miles to 
the east of York city centre. It is a voluntary aided mixed gender secondary school 
with science college status, and designated as a high performing school with applied 
learning status. It currently serves approximately 850 students in the 11 - 16 age 
group, mainly within the south and east areas of York. 
 
1.5 The 8.5Ha site is located directly adjacent to Hull Road to the south. The 
surrounding development is primarily low rise residential, the Black Bull Hotel, and 
low rise motel, on the western perimeter. 
 
1.6 The school site is a single, two and three storey mixed development, based on 
an original school development in 1963. This was significantly enlarged in the 1970's 
with successive further developments to date. The main buildings are located 
towards the northern part of the site. The southern part of the site comprises the 
school grounds, mainly playing fields. The main entrance and exit point for both 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic is located on Yarburgh Way on the north eastern side 
of the site. 
 

Agenda Item 3b Page 10



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01266/FULM  Item No: 3b 
Page 2 of 12 

1.7 The proposal is to construct a two storey building to accommodate approximately 
1730 square metres of floor space. The overall size of the building is 46 metres by 
19 metres with a maximum height of 9.75 metres. The building is to be sited directly 
adjacent to the east wing of the building on an existing hard standing which is 
currently used as the car park and will provide accommodation for 160 pupils and 10 
staff. The proposal includes 30 parking spaces( including 2 disabled spaces) , 58 
cycle parking spaces and motorcycle parking adjacent to the new applied learning 
centre. The main car parking that is currently located on the site of the new building 
is to be relocated to the front of the school building. This area provides 85 car 
parking spaces ( Including 5 disabled spaces) and 300 covered cycle parking 
spaces. It is also proposed to  widen a portion of the internal access road to 5.5 
metres to provide a passing place for vehicles entering and leaving the site. 
Vehicular entrance enhancements proposed on the original scheme have been 
deleted from this application.  
 
1.8 The application is supported by a design and access statement which 
incorporates sustainability measures. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
City Boundary York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams  East Area (1) 0003 
 
Schools Badger Hill Primary 0184 
 
Schools Archbishop Holgate's CE 0243 
 
 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
Internal 
 
Highways Network Management 
 
3.1 The previous application included proposed works to the entrance that were not 
favoured by highways as they were considered to disadvantage pedestrian 
movements at and around the main entrance. If amendments to the entrance are still 
envisaged then details must be submitted for consideration. 
3.2 It is also noted that motorcycle and extensive cycle parking/storage areas are to 
be provided but no details are shown. It is considered that this could be covered by 
condition. 

Page 11



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01266/FULM  Item No: 3b 
Page 3 of 12 

3.3 It is also noted that a large area of car parking is to be formed with "Grasscrete". 
This area would be over 200m from the public highway and consequently it is not 
considered that there would be any significant "carry over" of loose material onto the 
public highway. Its construction and use is therefore not objected to subject to 
standard conditions being applied. 
3.4 Notwithstanding the above comments Highways Network Management do not 
object to the application subject to conditions that ensure the appropriate execution 
of the scheme,  the submission of a travel plan and a condition requiring the 
submission of details of the covered cycle and motor bike parking. 
 
Environmental Protection 
3.5 The Environmental Protection Unit have no objections to the application however 
it is recommended that a  condition is attached to ensure any plant / machinery 
installed as a result of this application does not affect the amenity of local residents 
through noise. A demolition and construction informative is also suggested. 
 
Structures and Drainage 
3.6 No objections to the proposal provided the maximum discharge rate does not 
exceed 5 litres per second. 
 
Landscape Architect 
 
3.7 The Landscape Architect does not object to the principle of the development 
however there are two trees that will be lost by the positioning of the car park which it 
is considered should be retained. It is requested that the cycle parking is amended to 
allow the trees to be kept. A landscaping condition and tree protection condition are 
also proposed. 
 
 
External 
 
Hull Road Planning Panel 
3.8 Hull Road Planning panel support this application 
 
Sport England 
3.9 Sport England objected to the last application for the extension of the school 
because the proposed location of the car parking would result in the loss of a playing 
pitch and athletics provision. The resubmission now proposes to place the car 
parking adjacent to the existing rugby pitch on an area of land that is currently 
sloping and would not be capable of forming a pitch. Therefore, as the development 
will not impact on any of the existing pitches or safety margins, sport England is 
satisfied that the development is acceptable when assessed against their policies. 
 
Publicity 
3.10 The application was advertised by means of a site notice posted on the 10th 
June 2008 and via a press advert dated the 11th June 2008. Properties surrounding 
the site were also consulted on the application on the 3rd June 2008. 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01266/FULM  Item No: 3b 
Page 4 of 12 

4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 Key Issues 
- Policy background 
- Design and landscape considerations 
- Traffic, highways and access issues 
- Playing field provision 
- Drainage 
- Sustainability 
- Impact on Residential amenity 
 
Policy Background 
4.2 The application relates to the erection of an extension to an existing school to 
provide facilities for 16 to 18 year olds. The site is identified as an educational 
establishment in the Draft Local Plan.  
 
4.3 The regional spatial strategy adopted May 2008 says little about education, 
however policy E1 makes reference to the need to support higher and further 
education to ensure a knowledge driven economy. Paragraph 11.3 says that there 
needs to be an ongoing focus on education skills, training and training 
entrepreneurships.  
 
4.4 The draft local plan sets out educational objectives, one of which is to foster a 
culture of education, life-long learning and to widen access  to education. Policy ED1 
in relation to Primary and secondary education says that new secondary education 
facilities will be granted provided that it would meet a recognised need, the 
development is of a scale and design appropriate to the character and appearance 
of the locality and an area of open space and playing fields, sufficient to meet the 
needs of pupils is incorporated in the development and where a development is 
capable of a joint or dual use for community benefit, this has been incorporated into 
the design. Policy ED11 says the loss of playing fields associated with educational 
establishments will not be permitted unless exceptional circumstances are proven to 
exist. 
 
4.5 Other relevant local plan policies include GP1 (Design), which states that 
development proposals will be expected ( inter alia) to respect or enhance the local 
environment, be of a density, layout, scale, mass and design that is compatible with 
neighbouring buildings, spaces and the character of the area, using appropriate 
building materials, and avoiding the loss of open spaces, important gaps within 
development, vegetation, water features and other features that contribute to the 
quality of the local environment. Policy GP4a requires new development to have 
regard to the principles of sustainable development as set out in the policy and 
expanded upon within the Interim Planning Statement on sustainable design and 
construction.  
 
4.6 Policy GP7 says that the development of land designated as open space will only 
be permitted where there will be no detrimental effect on local amenity or nature 
conservation and compensatory provision of an equivalent size and standard is 
provided. Policy GP9 states that where appropriate, development proposals will be 
required to incorporate a suitable landscaping scheme, which must be planned as an 

Page 13



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01266/FULM  Item No: 3b 
Page 5 of 12 

integral part of the proposals, include an appropriate range of indigenous species, 
reflect the character of the locality and surrounding development and form a long 
term edge to developments adjoining or in open countryside. 
 
Design and Landscape Considerations 
 
4.7 It is proposed to site the building on the existing car park located adjacent to the 
east wing of the existing building. The land beyond the car park area   drops away to 
the playing fields. The playing fields separating the site from surrounding residential 
properties. The design of the building is similar in scale to the rest of the school and 
has been designed to be consistent with the external form of existing buildings. As 
the extension will be sited immediately adjacent to the existing school buildings, with 
consistent visual form and scale, it is anticipated that its presence will not affect the 
visual amenity of the area. 
 
4.8 In terms of landscape the proposal intends keeping all the existing landscaping 
around the area of the site where the extension is to be built. This area would also 
benefit from additional planting, particularly to soften the development when viewed 
from the residential properties to the rear. The submission of a landscaping scheme 
will be conditioned. In relation to the proposed  car park; there are  four trees that will 
be affected by the new car park and cycle parking position.The Landscape Architect 
is concerned about the loss of two of the trees a lime and a maple which are good 
specimens and has asked for the layout to be amended to ensure that these trees 
can be retained. An amended plan is expected to deal with the Landscape Architects 
concern, the details of the amendment will be reported direct to committee. In all 
other respects the position of the new  parking arrangements is considered to be 
acceptable;it is well related to the buildings reception area and provides the site with 
a better overall layout. Additional landscaping through a landscaping scheme will 
help assimilate the car park in to the site and provide 'softening' to the gabion wall 
needed to retain soil where levels change between the playing field and car parking 
area.  
 
 
Traffic, highways and access issues    
 
4.9 The proposal includes 30 parking spaces (including 2 disabled spaces) , 58 cycle 
parking spaces and motorcycle parking adjacent to the new applied learning centre. 
The main car parking that is currently located on the site of the new building is to be 
relocated to the front of the school building. This area provides 85 car parking 
spaces (Including 5 disabled spaces) and 300 covered cycle parking spaces. It is 
also proposed to  widen a portion of the internal access road to 5.5 metres to provide 
a passing place for vehicles entering and leaving the site. Vehicular entrance 
enhancements proposed on the original scheme have been deleted from this 
application.  
 
4.10 Highways Network Management raise no objections to the proposals subject to 
conditions which ensure the proper implementation of the scheme and the 
submission of a travel plan. The parking provision is well related to the entrances to 
the building and is considered to provide an overall better arrangement that exists at 
the site.  

Page 14



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01266/FULM  Item No: 3b 
Page 6 of 12 

 
Playing Field Provision 
 
4.11 Sport England have considered this application in the context of there policy 
which opposes any grant of planning permission for any development which would 
lead to the loss of or prejudice the use of any part of a playing field. The previous 
application for the proposal was objected to because the car park was sited so that a 
significant amount of playing field would be lost. Sport England have concluded that 
the proposed development affects only land incapable of forming, or forming part of, 
a playing pitch and does not result in the loss of or inability to make use of any 
playing pitch, a reduction in size of the playing area of any playing pitch or the loss of 
any sporting/ ancillary facilities on site and are therefore not objecting to the 
application. 
 
Drainage 
 
4.12 The site is located within flood zone 1. Structures and Drainage have confirmed 
that details submitted to deal with surface water run off are acceptable. A condition is 
proposed to ensure that the maximum discharge rate proposed is achieved and 
maintained on site. The Environment Agency has been consulted on the application 
because the application site exceeds 1 Ha. Any comments received will be reported 
direct to committee. 
 
Sustainability 
 
4.13 The design and access statement sets out the sustainability measures that will 
be undertaken to achieve a BREEAM assessment very good. Measures include a 
Building Energy Management System which provides time and temperature control 
functions for heating, domestic hot water and mechanical ventilation systems, 
rainwater harvesting and ground source heating. A condition is proposed to ensure a 
BREEAM very good is achieved. The measures proposed within the development 
are considered to be in accordance with GP4a and the interim planning statement 
relating to sustainable development. 
 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
4.14 The siting of the proposed extension is set well away from residential properties 
and whilst these properties will be aware of the change in the appearance of the 
school as a result of the building there will be no detrimental impact on the 
residential amenity of properties as a result of the extension. 
 
4.15 The new car parking area on the west of the site will increase vehicle, cycle and 
pedestrian movements adjacent to the sites boundary with the public house . 
However the boundary between the sites is well established and positioning of the 
cycle and car parking in its proposed location will not in Officer view detract from the 
operation of the public house. Properties on Sails drive to the rear of the public 
house will not be affected by the development. 
  
 
 

Page 15



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01266/FULM  Item No: 3b 
Page 7 of 12 

 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 Archbishop Holgate's School has been identified as a high performing school and 
a feasibility study for the school has concluded that  through the erection of a new 
purpose built applied learning centre the school could promote partnership working 
to deliver 16-19 year old education. In terms of its design and siting and highways, 
traffic and access issues the proposal is considered to be acceptable and in 
accordance within policy ED1 and GP1 of the Draft Local Plan. 
 
5.2 The proposal will not result in the loss of playing field facilities and therefore 
accords with the requirements of ED11 and will provide sustainability measures in 
accordance with policy GP4a and the Interim Planning Statement on Sustainable 
development. 
 
5.3 Whilst the development will be visible to surrounding properties, it is sited 
sufficient distance from the boundaries of the site not to cause disturbance or be in 
any way visually dominant and therefore complies with the requirements of GP1 in 
so far as it relates to residential amenity. 
 
 
 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
 
1  TIME2  Development start within three years  
 
2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 

with the following plans and other submitted details:- 
 
071368 103E 
071368 104E 
071368 106E 
071368 135A 
28298/207 
28298/202A 
28298/200A 
28298/103 
28298/100A 
28298/101 
28298/102 
28298/01 
28298/02 
28298/03 
28298/04 
28298/05 
28298/06 
28298/07 
 

Page 16



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01266/FULM  Item No: 3b 
Page 8 of 12 

Design and Access statement incorporating sustainability details received 27th May 
2008 
 
or any plans or details subsequently agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority as an amendment to the approved plans. 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 3  No development shall take place until there has been submitted and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed landscaping scheme which shall 
illustrate the number, species, height and position of trees and shrubs .  This scheme 
shall be implemented within a period of six months of the completion of the 
development.  Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size 
and species, unless alternatives are agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety, 
suitability and disposition of species within the site. 
 
 4  Before the commencement of development including excavations, site 
clearance, building operations, or the importing of materials, a method statement 
regarding protection measures for the existing trees to be retained shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This statement shall 
include details and locations of protective fencing to be shown on a plan; site access 
during demolition/construction; arrangements for loading/off-loading; parking 
arrangements for site vehicles; locations for storage of materials; location of site 
compound.  
The protective fencing line shall be adhered to at all times during development to 
create exclusion zones. None of the following activities shall take place within the 
exclusion zones: excavation, raising of levels, storage of any materials or top soil, 
lighting of fires, parking or manoeuvring of vehicles. Within the exclusion zones there 
shall be no site huts, no mixing of cement, no disposing of washings, no stored fuel, 
no new service runs or drains et al.  
 
Reason: To ensure protection of existing trees before, during and after development 
which are covered by a Tree Preservation Order and/or make a significant 
contribution to the amenity of the area and/or development. 
 
5  HWAY10  Vehicular areas surfaced, details reqd  
 
6  HWAY18  Cycle parking details to be agreed  
 
7  HWAY19  Car and cycle parking laid out  
 
 8  The development hereby permitted shall not come into use until secure and 
covered motorcycle parking facilities have been provided in accordance with details 
that have been submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. Thereafter the 
parking facilities shall be retained free of all obstructions that would prevent their 

Page 17



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01266/FULM  Item No: 3b 
Page 9 of 12 

intended purpose. 
 
Reason - To promote alternative means of commuting to the private car thereby 
reducing congestion on the adjacent roads  
 
 9  Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted an 
amended School Travel Plan for Archbishop Holgates School incorporating the 
proposed learning centre or solely for the proposed learning centre, as deemed 
appropriate, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the LPA and thereafter 
such measures as may be contained therein shall be adhered to. 
 
Reason:To ensure the development complies with advice contained in PPG 13-
Transport, and in Policy T20 of the City of York deposit Draft Local Plan, and to 
ensure that adequate provision is made for the movement of vehicles, pedestrians, 
cycles and other modes of transport to and from the site, together with provision of 
parking on site for these users 
 
10  Details of all machinery, plant and equipment to be installed in or located on 
the use hereby permitted, which is audible outside of the site boundary when in use, 
shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval.  These details shall 
include maximum sound levels (LAmax(f)) and average sound levels (LAeq), octave 
band noise levels and any proposed noise mitigation measures.  All such approved 
machinery, plant and equipment shall not be used on the site except in accordance 
with the prior written approval of the local planning authority.  The machinery, plant 
or equipment and any approved noise mitigation measures shall be fully 
implemented and operational before the proposed use first opens and shall be 
appropriately maintained thereafter. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents. 
 
11  The developer shall aim to achieve a BREEAM "very good" or "excellent" 
assessment standard for the development. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Council  within 1 month of the date of the commencement of construction of the 
development the developer shall submit in writing for the approval of the Local 
Planning Authority a BREEAM design assessment demonstrating the progress of the 
BREEAM assessment, the percentage score expected to be achieved and which 
standard this relates to. Where this does not meet at least a 'very good' standard 
then the developer must demonstrate what changes will be made to the 
development to achieve at least 'very good" standard. 
 
Reason. To ensure that the development is sustainable and accords with Policy 
GP4A of the draft City of York Local Plan. 
 
12  VISQ8  Samples of exterior materials to be app  
 
13  The maximum rate of discharge from the proposed development must be no 
greater then 5 l/s.  
 
Reason:  To prevent the increased risk of flooding. 
 

Page 18



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01266/FULM  Item No: 3b 
Page 10 of 12 

 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the conditions 
listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged importance, 
with particular reference to:- 
- Design and landscape considerations 
- Traffic,highways and access issues 
- Playing field provision 
- Drainage 
- Sustainability 
- Impact on Residential Amenity 
As such the proposal complies with  Policies ED1, ED11, GP1, GP4a, and GP9 of 
the City of York Local Plan Deposit Draft. 
 2. Contaminated Land 
 
If, as part of the proposed development, the applicant encounters any suspect 
contaminated materials in the ground, the Contaminated Land Officer at the council's 
Environmental Protection Unit should be contacted immediately.  In such cases, the 
applicant will be required to design and implement a remediation scheme to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  Should City of York Council become 
aware at a later date of suspect contaminated materials which have not been 
reported as described above, the council may consider taking action under Part IIA 
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 
 3. CONTAMINATION 
If, as part of the proposed development, the applicant encounters any suspect 
contaminated materials in the ground, the Contaminated Land Officer at the council's 
Environmental Protection Unit should be contacted immediately.  In such cases, the 
applicant will be required to design and implement a remediation scheme to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  Should City of York Council become 
aware at a later date of suspect contaminated materials which have not been 
reported as described above, the council may consider taking action under Part IIA 
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 
 4. Construction Informative 
 
The developer's attention should also be drawn to the various requirements for the 
control of noise on construction sites laid down in the Control of Pollution Act 1974.  
In order to ensure that residents are not adversely affected by air pollution and noise, 
the following guidance should be attached to any planning approval, failure to do so 
could result in formal action being taken under the Control of Pollution Act 1974: 
 
1. All demolition and construction works and ancillary operations, including deliveries 
to and despatch from the site shall be 
    confined to the following hours: 
 
 Monday to Friday   08.00 to 18.00 
 Saturday    09.00 to 13.00  

Page 19



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01266/FULM  Item No: 3b 
Page 11 of 12 

 Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
 
2. The work shall be carried out in such a manner so as to comply with the general 
recommendations of British Standards BS 5228: Part 1: 1997, a code of practice for 
"Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open  Sites" and in particular 
Section 10 of Part 1 of the code entitled "Control of noise and vibration". 
 
3. All plant and machinery to be operated, sited and maintained in order to minimise 
disturbance.  All items of machinery powered by internal  combustion engines must 
be properly silenced and/or fitted with effective and well-maintained mufflers in 
accordance with manufacturers instructions. 
 
4. The best practicable means, as defined by Section 72 of the Control of Pollution 
Act 1974, shall be employed at all times, in order to minimise noise emissions. 
 
5. All reasonable measures shall be employed in order to control and minimise dust 
emissions, including sheeting of vehicles and use of water for dust suppression. 
 
6. There shall be no bonfires on the site. 
 5. Controls on construction site 
The developer's attention should also be drawn to the various requirements for the 
control of noise on construction sites laid down in the Control of Pollution Act 1974.  
In order to ensure that residents are not adversely affected by air pollution and noise, 
the following guidance should be attached to any planning approval, failure to do so 
could result in formal action being taken under the Control of Pollution Act 1974: 
 
1. All demolition and construction works and ancillary operations, including deliveries 
to and despatch from the site shall be 
    confined to the following hours: 
 
 Monday to Friday   08.00 to 18.00 
 Saturday    09.00 to 13.00  
 Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
 
2. The work shall be carried out in such a manner so as to comply with the general 
recommendations of British Standards BS 5228: Part 1: 1997, a code of practice for 
"Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open  Sites" and in particular 
Section 10 of Part 1 of the code entitled "Control of noise and vibration". 
 
3. All plant and machinery to be operated, sited and maintained in order to minimise 
disturbance.  All items of machinery powered by internal  combustion engines must 
be properly silenced and/or fitted with effective and well-maintained mufflers in 
accordance with manufacturers instructions. 
 
4. The best practicable means, as defined by Section 72 of the Control of Pollution 
Act 1974, shall be employed at all times, in order to minimise noise emissions. 
 
5. All reasonable measures shall be employed in order to control and minimise dust 
emissions, including sheeting of vehicles and use of water for dust suppression. 
 

Page 20



 

Application Reference Number: 08/01266/FULM  Item No: 3b 
Page 12 of 12 

6. There shall be no bonfires on the site. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Diane Cragg Development Control Officer (Mon/Tues) 
Tel No: 01904 551657 
 

Page 21



Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission

of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown

Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not Set

Archbishop Holgates School

08/01266/FULM

Not Set

Not Set

11 August 2008

Application Site

1:3750

Page 22


	Agenda
	
	
	3a 7 Fairfields Drive, Skelton,York, YO30 1YP. (08/01640/FUL)
	08 01640 FUL

	3b Archbishop Holgates School, Hull Road, York, YO10 5ZA. (08/01266/FULM)
	08 01266 FULM


